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How to Use This Book

1. Think of the English sentence, question, or phrase you want to say in French.

2. Look it up alphabetically.  The French translation follows immediately.

For example, if you want to say “Are we late?”  You look up the question under the “A”s and find 
that the translation is “Nous somme en retard?”

If you do not find the sentence, question or phrase you want to say, then try a slightly different 
wording. For example, if you don’t find something under “I am...” then look under “I’m...”, and 
vice versa.  But keep in mind that this book is only a draft, and certainly omits sentences, ques-
tions or phrases that would be included in a fully developed version of the book.

You do not have to memorize anything in order to use this book, although you are perfectly free to 
do so if you wish!

A few conventions you need to be aware of:

Sentences, questions or phrases that begin with a person’s name, e.g., “Mary is here.” should be 
looked up under [name]...  under the “N”s.  (Here, you would look up “[name] is here.”)

Square brackets, [...] enclose comments, generic names, expression of alternatives, etc.

The symbol “(T)” means that what follows is the familiar form, i.e., it is what you would say if the 
person to whom you are speaking is familiar to you.  But sometimes the familiar form is indicated 
in other ways.
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Alphabetical Listing of Sentences, Questions and Phrases

-A-
Actually En fait
After all  Après tout
Again Encore
All of a sudden  Tout à coup [or] Soudain
All the same Tout de mème
Are there any good restaurants around here? Est-ce qu’il y a de bons restaurants par ici ?
Are you afraid?  Vous avez peur? (T) Tu as peur?]
Are you all right? Vous allez bien? (T) Tu vas bien? [or] Ça va?
Are you cold? Vous avez froid? (T) Tu as froid?
Are you comfortable? Vous êtes â’laise? (T) Tu es â’laise?
Are you comfortable/all set? Vous êtes bien installé-e? (T) Tu es bien installé-e?
Are you coming? Vous venez? (T) Tu viens?
Are you feeling better? Vous vous sentez mieux ? (T) Tu te sens mieux ?
Are you finished? Vous avez fini? (T) Tu as fini?
Are you getting enough to eat? Vous avez assez à manger? (T) Tu as assez à manger?
Are you going downtown? [Formal / Plural:] Vous allez au centre-ville ? (T) Tu vas au centre-

ville?
Are you hungry?  Vous avez faim? (T) Tu as faim?
Are you ill?  Vous ête malade? (T) Tu es malade?
Are you ready? Vous ête prêt(e)? (T) Tu es prête
Are you warm enough?  As-tu assez chaud?
And  et
Are we late?  Nous somme en retard?
As always  Comme toujours
As usual Comme d’habitude
At [time of day]  A [time of day] [At nine o’clock:] A neuf heure

-B-
Backwards (movement)  En arriere 
Beautiful weather today, no?  Il fait beau aujourd'hui!
Better! (as in “more well”) Mieux! (as in “more good”) Meilleur!
Be careful (Faites) attention (T) Fais attention
Be very careful on [i.e., going down] these steps. [If formal, or you say it to several people/

friends:] Attention en descendant les marches. / Attention aux marches.  [Informal, and to 
only one friend:] Fais attention en descendant les marches. / Fais attention aux marches.

Beware of ...  Attention à…
But mais
But what about...?  [If formal, or you say it to several people/friends:] Et qu’est-ce que vous 
pensez de… ? /  Et qu’est-ce que dit de… ?  (T)  Et qu’est-ce que tu penses de… ? /  Et qu’est-ce 
que tu dis de… ? 

-C-
Call a doctor. Appelez un médecin. (T) Appelle un médecin. 
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Call me [i.e., on the telephone]. Appelez-moi. Appelle-moi.
Can I help you? Je peux vous aider? (T) Viens
Come here. Venez. (T) Viens.
Come in![i.e., come in to a house, or a room]  Entrez ! (T) Entre!
Could I ask you to give me a few more translations? Vous pourriez me donner quelques autres tra-

ductions? (T) Tu pourrais me donner quelques autres traductions?
Could you help me? Vous pouvez m’aider? (T) Tu peux m’aider?

-D-
Day after tomorrow  Après-demain.
Day before yesterday  Avant-hier
Dear friends [e.g., as salutation of an email] Salut les amis
Did [name] show you where you can buy some books about things to do in Berkeley and in San 

Francisco?  Est-ce que [name] vous a indiqué où on peut acheter des guides touristique sur 
San Francisco ou Berkeley, et ce qu'on peut faire dans ces endroits? (T) Est-ce que [name] t’a 
indiqué où on peut acheter des guides touristique sur San Francisco ou Berkeley?

Did [name] show you where you can buy some food?  Est-ce que [name] vous a montré où  on 
peut acheter ses courses?  (T) Est-ce que [name] t’a montré où  on peut acheter ses courses? 

Did you buy it?  Vous l’avez acheté? (T) Tu l’as acheté?
Did you find it? Vous l’avez trouvé?  (T) Tu l’as trouvé?
Did you have a good flight?  Vous avez fait un bon voyage? (T) Tu as fait un bon voyage?
Did you have a good trip?  Vous avez fait un bon voyage ? (T) Tu as fait un bon voyage ?
Did you have a good weekend? Vous avez passé un bon week-end? (T) Tu as passé un bon week-

end?
Did you have a nice day [today, yesterday]?  Vous avez passé une bonne journée? week-end? (T) 

Tu as passé une bonne journée?
Did you have a nice walk?  Vous avez fait une bonne promenade ? (T) Tu as fait une bonne prom-

enade?
Did you read the newspaper today? Avez-vous lu le journal aujourd’hui?
Did you sleep well?   Vous avez bien dormi? (T) Tu as bien dormi?
Do not open the front door to anyone you don’t know. N’ouvrez pas la porte aux inconnus. (T) 

N’ouvre pas la porte aux inconnus. 
Do not open this door any more than to about here.  The door jams very easily.  Please move it 

very slowly and carefully.  At night you can close it all the way. S’il vous plait, n’ouvrez pas la 
porte (coulissant) plus que cela.  La porte ne ouvre pas facilement. La porte se coince facil-
ment. S’il vous plait, bougez-la tres lentement.  La nuit vous pouvez la fermer complètement.  
[Or: S’il te plait, je préfère si tu ne touches pas à cette porte car elle est tres fragile; je te con-
seille de la laisser entrouvert pendant la journée, comme e ça tu ne dois pas la bouger beau-
coup, et puis pendant la soirée, avant de te coucher, tu peut la fermer.  Mais ne l’ouvre pas 
jusqu’au mur.]

Don’t cry. Ne pleurez pas. (T) Ne pleure pas.
Don’t forget (to...).  N’oubliez pas (de...). (T) N’oublie pas (de...).
Don’t forget to lock both locks of the front door when you leave. N’oubliez pas de fermer les deux 

verrous de la pote d’entrée quand vous partez.  (T) N’obulie pas de fermer les deux verrous de 
la porte d’entrée quand tu pars.

Don’t forget your umbrella. N’oubliez pas votre parapluie.(T) N’oublie pas ton parapluie.]
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Don’t hesitate to ...  N’hésitez pas à ... (T) N’hésite pas  à...
Don’t leave.  Ne partez pas.  (T) Ne pars pas.
Don’t lose it [e.g., a loaned umbrella]. It’s not mine.  Ne le perdez pas, ce n’est pas à mois. (T) Ne 

le perds pas, ce n’est pas à mois.
Don’t tell me! [expression of surprise] Pas possible! [Also] Incroyable!
Do we have time [for it]?  Est-ce que nous avons le temps?
Don’t worry.  Ne vous inquiétez pas. (T) Ne t’inquiéte pas..
Do what pleases you.  Faites ce qui vous plaît. (T) Fais ce qui te plaît.
Do you have a job in France?   Est-ce que vous travaillez en France? (T)  Est-ce que tu travailles 

en France?
Do you have an umbrella? Vous avez un parapluie? (T) Tu as un parapluie?
Do you have any friends in Berkeley? Vous avez des amis à Berkeley? (T) Tu as des amis à Ber-

keley?
Do you have any magazines?  Vous avez des magazines?(T) Tu as des magazines?
Do you have any of your photographs with you?  Est-ce que vous avez porté des photos avec 

vous? (T) Est-ce que tu avez porté des photos avec toi?
Do you have an umbrella? As-tu une parapluie?
Do you have any friends in Berkeley?  Est-ce que vous avez des ami a Berkeley?
Do you have a TV program schedule? Vous avez un programme télé ? (T) Tu as un programme 

télé ?
Do you have any magazines? Vous avez des magazines?  (T) Tu as des magazines?
Do you know ...[person]?  Vous connaissez ...? (T) Tu connais ...?
Do you know how to change the [TV] channels? Vous savez comment changer de chaîne? (T)  Tu 
sais comment changer de chaîne?
Do you know how to make coffee using a pot like this?  Vous savez faire du café avec ça? (T) Tu 

sais faire du café avec ça?
Do you know how to operate it? Vous savez comment faire marcher ça? (T) Tu sais comment faire 

marcher ça?
Do you know how to play a video tape? Sais-tu utiliser une cassette video?
Do you know how to use a VCR (a DVD player)?  Vous savez utiliser un magnétoscope (un lect-

eur d DVD)? (T) Tu sais utiliser un magnétoscope (un lecteur d DVD)?
Do you know how to turn on the [TV, radio]? Vous savez comment allumer la television/radio?
Do you know how to turn off  the [TV, radio]? Vous savez comment eteindre la television/radio? 

(T) Tu sais comment eteindre la television/radio?
Do you know where to buy groceries? Vous savez où faire les courses? (T) Tu sais où faire les 

courses? 
Do you know where to buy one?  Vous savez où en acheter un? (T) Tu sais où en acheter un?
Do you like ... ? Est-ce que vous aimez ...? (T) Est-ce que tu aimes ...?
Do you like the movies? Est-ce que vous aimez le cinéma? (T)  Est-ce que tu aimes le cinéma?
Do you live around here? Vous habitez près d’ici ? (T) Tu Habites près d’ici ?
Do you need anything? Vous avez besoin de quelque chose? (T) Tu as besoin de quelque chose?
>Do you need to use the restroom? Vous voulez aller au toilettes? (T) Tu vaux aller au toilettes?
Do you need towels? Vous avez besoin de serviettes? (T) Tu as besoin de serviettes?
Do you need soap? Vous avez besoin de savon? (T) Tu as besoin de savon?
Do you remember [something]?  Vous souvenez-vous de ... ?  (T) Tu te souviens de ....?
Do you remember that [something already mentioned earlier]?  Vous vous en souvenez?  (T) Tu 
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t’en souviens?
Do you think so? [literally: Do you believe so?]  Vous croyez? (Tu) Tu crois?
Do you understand?  Vous comprenez? (T) Tu comprends?

-E-
Earlier  Plus tot
Every day Tous les jour
Everyone.  Tout le monde.
Excuse me.   Excusez-moi. (T) Excuse-moi.

-F-
Feel free to watch the TV whenever you want.  Tu peut regarder la tele quand tu veut.
Follow me.  Suivez moi.
For example  Par exemple
For the first time  Pour la première fois.
Forward march Avancez 
Forwards   En avance
Frankly  A franchement parler
From this time forward  Désormais

-G-
Give it to me.  Donnez le moi.
Giving me these translations is your rent! [i.e., your way of paying the rent] Vous n'aurez pas 

besoin de payer votre loyer si vous me faites ces traductions. [If person is familiar - Tu n'auras 
pas besoin de payer ton loyer si tu me fais ces traductions.] 

Give me a call [i.e., on the telephone] Passez-moi un coup de fil. [If person is familiar - Passe-moi 
un coup de fil.]

Goodbye   Au revoir, A bientot
Go left.  A gauche.
Good evening.  Bonsoir.
Good morning.  Bonjour.
Good night.  Bonne nuit.
Go right.   A droit.

-H-
Happy Birthday!  Bonne Anniversaire!
Happy New Year!   Bonne année!
Have a good day! Bonne journee
Have a good trip!  Bon voyage!
Have you heard ...? Avez-vous entendu dire...?
Have you read [book]? Avez-vous lu [book]?
Have you seen [film]?  Avez-vous vu [film]?
Hello.   Bonjour
Help!  Aidez-moi. 
Help yourself [at table].  Servez-vous.
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Here is the phone number of Lydia’s sister, Gia.  Do not hesitate to call her.  Lydia said it is OK. 
Voila le numero de Gia, la soeur de Lydia. N'hesite pas a l'appeller, Lydia a dit que c'est ok.

Here is your ticket. Voici votre ticket. [If person is familiar:] Voici ton ticket.
Here it is. [said of an object one has found] (Le) voilà !
Here, like this.  Comme cela [or Comme ca]
He would have told me.  Il me l’aurais dit.
Home [phone] number. Numero de telephone chez moi [or a la maison]
Honestly!  Franchement!
How are you?  Comment s’ava? or  Comment t’allez vous?
How do I get to ... ? [place]  Où se trouve ...? [Also:] Comment puis-je me rendre à ...? [or] C'est 

où pour aller à ...?
How do you say ...?   Comment dit on...?
How far is [town]?  C'est loin d'ici? [or] C'est combien de kilometres d'ici?
How have you been?  Comment t’allez vous?
How long have you been in the U.S.? Vous vivez/(tu vis) aux Etats-Unis depuis longtemps? or 

Vous êtes/(tu es) aux Etats-Unis depuis longtemps?
How old are you? Quel âge avez-vous? [If person is familiar:] Quel âge as-tu?
How much is that?  Ca coute combien?
How was that?  C'était comment?
How was your day? Avez-vous passé une bonne journée ? / Est-ce que vous avez passé une bonne 

journéé ? [If formal, or you say it to several people/friends.] As-tu passé une bonne journée ? / 
Est-ce que tu as passé une bonne journéé ? [Informal, and to only one friend.]

How was your trip? Avez-vous eu un bon voyage?
How was your weekend?  Comment s’est passé votre week-end? [If person is familiar:] Comment 

s’est passé ton week-end?
Hurry up! Depechez toi!

-I-
I always feel better when I can talk to you.  Je me sens toujours mieux quand je peux vous [te] 

parler. [ Or] Ca va toujours mieux quand je peux vous parter.
I am an American.   Je suis un Americain.
I am angry. Je suis en colère.
I am fine. Ca va tres bien, merci. Et vous? [Always to the question, Ca va?]
I am glad. Je suis content [or heureux, depending upon context]
I am going shopping. Je vais faire les courses.
I am going to ...  Je vais ... 
I am going to have breakfast.  Je vais prendre mon petit-déjeuner.  
I am going to watch a video tape [DVD] tonight. The movie will be [name of film]. You are wel-

come to join me.  But you should feel free to leave at any time, if you don't like the film. Ce 
soir je vais regarder une cinema/video [DVD].  C'est...    Vous êtes invitee de le regarder avec 
moi, mais, si vous preferez de faire autres choses, c’est bien aussi, et bien sur, vous pouvez 
quitter la chambre s'il ne vous interesse pas.

I am going to run some errands. Je vais faire des emplettes.
I am here.  Je suis ici.
I am hungry.   J’ai faim.
I am joking. C'est une blague. [Also:] Je rigole. C'est pour rire.
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I am lost [e.g., in a city] Je suis perdu. [man] Je suis perdue. [woman]
I am lost [e.g., in trying to understand something] Je ne comprends pas. Je ne suis pas. [from the 

verb "suivre", follow]
I am not ill. Je ne suis pas malade.
I am reading [a book]. Je lis [un livre]. [Also:] Je suis en train de lire.
I am sorry for it.  J’en suis fâché.
I am stupid.  I hate myself.  Je suis stupide. Je me déteste.
I am thirsty.   J’ai soif.
I am [very] tired.    Je suis [assez] fatigue.
I am undecided. Je ne sais pas. Je n'arrive pas à me decider.
I am very glad to see you.  Je suis très contents de vous voir.
I bought a watch. J'ai acheté une montre.
I did not understand you.  Je ne vous ai pas compris.
I do not intend...  Je n’ai pas l’intention...
I do not like [person or thing].  Je n'aime pas
I do not understand.    Je ne comprends pas.
I don’t know.  Je ne sais pas.
I don’t know what.  Je ne sais quoi.
I don’t know what to do.  Je ne sais pas quoi faire.
I don’t remember. Je ne m’en souviens pas.
I don’t understand. Je ne comprends pas.
I enjoyed this very much. J'ai beaucoup aimé ceci. [Also:] J'ai beaucoup aimé ça.
I expect to be finished by [time]. J'espère avoir terminé à [hour] J'espère avoir terminé le [day]
I feel fine. Je me sens bien. [Also:] Je vais bien.
I give you a kiss.  Je t’embrasse. 
I hate ...  Je déteste...
I hate it. Je déteste ça. [Also:] Je le déteste.
I have a cold. J'ai un rhume. [Also:] Je suis enrhumé. [If a woman:] Je suis enrhumée.
I have a cough. Je tousse. 
I have a lot to do today. J'ai plein de choses à faire aujourd'hui.
I have been downtown. Je suis allé au centre-ville [Man] Je suis allée au centre-ville [Woman]
I have looked in the dictionary and have found nothing.  J'ai cherche dans le dictionnaire et n'a 

rien trouve.
I have no idea what “le byrrh” means.  I have looked in the dictionary and have found nothing. Je 

n'ai aucune idee ce que veut dire "le byrrh."  J'ai cherche dans le dictionnaire et n'a rien trouve. 
I haven’t been feeling well.  Je ne me sens pas biens.
I haven’t time. Je n’ai pas le temps.
I have had enough of it [food] J’en ai assez mangé. 
I have quite forgotten what we were talking about.  J’ai totalment oublié de quoi nous parlions.
I have understood you.  Je vous ai compris.
I hope so.  Je l’espère.
I hope that...  J’espère que...
I hope things are going well. J'espere que tout va bien.
I hope that you do not tire yourself too much.  J’espère que tu ne te donnes pas trop d’ennuis.
I hope that you have a good day.  J’espère que tu te trouve bien toute la journee
I kiss you.  Je t’embrasse.
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I know ...[person].  Je connais...
I’ll give you a call [i.e., on the telephone]. Je vous appelerai. [If person is familiar - Je t’appele-
rai.]
I love ...  J’aime ...
I love it.  J'aime ça. [Also:] Je l’aime.
I’m about to leave. Je viens bientôt partir/m’en aller. [Also:] Je suis sur le point de partir/m'en 

aller.
I love you.  Je t’aime.  
I’m glad.  Je suis heureux [If a woman:] Je suis heureuse. [Also:] Je suis content. [If a woman:] Je 

suis contente.
I’m glad to meet you.  Enchante a faire votre connaisance.
I’m going home. Je rentre à la maison. [Also:] Je rentre chez moi.
I’m going to [place].  Je vais à ... .
I'm going to build a fire in the fireplace.  Je vais faire du feu dans la cheminee.
I’m hanging up [the phone] now.  Je vais raccrocher.
I’m late. Je suis en retard.
I miss you a lot.  Tu me manques beaucoup.
I must...  Il faut che je...
I’m on the phone right now. Je suis au téléphone en ce moment même. 
I’m reading ...  Je lis ...
I’m ready. Je suis prêt. [If person is a woman - Je suis prête.]
I’m sorry.   Pardon!  [or] Je suis désolé. [If person is a woman:] Je suis désolée.
I’m sorry to bother you, but...  Je suis désolé [désolée if " je " is a woman] de vous déranger, 

mais…
I’m trying to find ...  J'essaie de trouver...
I must...  Il faut che je...
I must disagree with you.  Je ne suis pas d’accord.
I must leave.  Je dois partir.
I must take out the garbage.  Je dois sortir les poubelles.
Indeed En effet 
I need to write a long letter in French to...  J'avais besoin d'ecrire une longue lettre en francais a... 
In fact En effet
I often say to you that...  Je te dis souvent que...
I remember  [something] Je me souviens de...
I remember [something already mentioned earlier]  Je m’en souviens.
I repeat:... Je répète: ... 
Is [name] in school today? Est-ce que [nom] est en cours aujourd'hui? [Also:] Est-ce que [nom] 

est à l'école aujourd'hui?
I saw him [it?].  Je l’ai vu.
I send you kisses.  Je t’envoie des baisses. ...tender and sweet...  Je t’envoie des baisses 
      tendres et doux.
I should speak more slowly.  Je devrai parler piu lentement.
Is it true?  Est-ce-que c'est vrai?
Isn’t that so?  N’est-ce pas?
It doesn’t make any difference.  Cela ne fait pas de difference.
It doesn’t work [said of a piece of machinery]  Ca ne marche pas [Or] Ca ne fontionne pas
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I think it means that... Je pense qu’il veut dire que...
I think that...  Je crois que...
It is on the first/second/third ... floor.  C’est aux premier/duexième/troisième... étage.
It makes no difference.  Cela ne fait pas de difference.
It’s a beautiful day! C'est une journée magnifique!
It’s a beautiful film!  C’est un film magnifique!
It’s a pleasure to meet you.  Enchante a faire votre connaisance.
It’s clean.  C’est propre.
It’s cold. Il fait froid.
It seems that...  Il parait que...
It’s good!   C’est bon.
It’s great to see you again!  Je suis content/heureux [contente/heureuse if  “je” is a woman] de 

vous revoir !
It’s hot.  C’est chaud.
It’s just a short circuit.  C’est juste un court circuit. 
It’s mine. C'est à moi.
It’s nice [said of an object]. C’est bien. [Also:] C’est beau.
It’s nice here. C'est bien ici.
It’s nothing. De rien. or, Il n’y a pas de quoi [pronounced yapadkwa].
It’s ready.  Il est pret.
It smells good! Ça sent bon!
It’s a nice day! C'est une belle journée! [Also:] Quelle belle journée!
It’s here.   C’est ici.
It’s mine. C'est le mien. [If object is feminine:] C'est la mienne.
It’s nothing.  C’est rien.
It’s partly cloudy.  Le ciel est un peu couvert.
It’s pretty. C'est joli. [Also:] C'est beau  [or] C'est chouette.
It’s raining.  Il pleuve.
It’s sad.   C’est triste.
It’s sunny.  Quel beaux temps!
It’s ugly. C'est moche. [Familiar, better to say: ] C'est horrible. [or] C'est pas beau.
It’s warm.  Il fait chaud.
It was great to see you again!  J’ai  été content-e de vous revoir (T) J’ai été content-e de vous 
revoir!
It was a pleasure meeting you.  J’ai été enchanté-e de faire votre connaissance (T) J’ai été 
enchanté-e de faire ta connaissance 
I understand.  Je comprends.
I understand that you recently graduated from college. Je comprends/Je vois que vous êtes tout 

jeune diplomé. [If person is familiar - Je comprends/Je vois que tu es tout jeune diplomé.] [If 
person is a woman/not familiar - Je comprends/Je vois que vous êtes toute jeune diplomée.] [If 
person is a woman/familiar - Je comprends/Je vois que tu es toute jeune diplomée.]

I understand written French much better than spoken French.  So let me get some paper and a pen-
cil.  Je comprends le francais ecrit beaucoup mieux que le francais articule.  Et bien, laissez 
moi prendre du papier.

I will...  Je verrai...
I will be taking my car  Je prendrai ma voiture.
572



I will be driving   Je conduirai. 
I will say goodnight now.  Je vais dire bonne nuit maintenant.
I will loan you one.  Je t'en prêterai un [If the thing is feminine:] "une". [And if the person is not 

familiar:] Je vous en prêtrai un/une.
It was only a joke. C'était seulement une blague. [Also:] Je ne faisais que de blaguer.
I will be right back. Je reviens immédiatement. [Also:] Je reviens de suite. 
I will be there! J’y serai!
I will leave it in the kitchen. Je le laisserai dans la cuisine. [If the thing is feminine:] Je la laisserai 

dans la cuisine.
I will now write.  Je vais  écrire. 
It works very well.  Ca marche tres bien.
I would have done it.  Je l’aurais fait.
I would like...   Je voudrai...  
I would like a cup of coffee.  Je voudrai une tasse du cafe.
I write. Je écris.

-L-
Last night  Hier soire
Last year.  L’annee derniere.
Let me explain. Laisse-moi t'expliquer. [If person is not familiar:] Laissez-moi vous expliquer.
Let me show you. Laisse-moi te montrer. [If person is not familiar:] Laissez-moi vous montrer.
Let’s eat.  A table.
Let’s go.   Nous allons.
Let’s see... [as when one says, "Let’s see, what was I doing?"] Voyons...
Listen! Ecoutez!
Lock [noun]  Serrure
Lock the door whenever you are in the house. Fermez la porte a clé lorsque vous êtes à la maison. 

[If person is familiar - Ferme la porte a clé lorsque que tu es à la maison.]
Lock the door whenever you leave the house.  Fermez la porte a clè avant de quitter la maison.
Look!    Regardez!

-M-
Make yourself at home. Fais comme chez toi. [If person is not familiar:] Faites comme chez vous.
Many thanks for your help.  Mille fois mercis 
Maybe Peut-etrê
Merry Christmas!   Joyeaux Noël!
Me neither  Moi, non plus
Me too  Moi aussi
More or less  Plus ou moins
Much better! [As reply to question, “How are you feeling?”]  Beaucoup mieux!
My car is in the repair shop. Ma voiture est au garage.
My car is parked near here. Ma voiture est (garée) près d'ici.
My God! Mon Dieu!
My house is your house.  Ma maison est ta maison.
My lady friend lives in New York City. Ma copine habite dans la ville de New York.
My name is [name].  Je m'appelle…
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-N-
[name] is here.  [name] est ici.
[name] is in [city, country].  [name] est dans [city, country].
[name] says hello.  [name] dit bonjour.
[name] tells me you are a very good photographer.  [name] me dit que vous êtes un tres bon pho-

tographe.
[name] will call you...  [name] va essayer de te telephoner....
Never  Jamais
Next week  La semaine prochaine
No! Non!
No kidding!  Sans blague!
Not any longer [as reply to a question like, “Are you still working for IBM?”]  Non. [or] Non, je 

ne traville plus pour IBM.
Not at all!  Pas du tout!
Not now!  Pas maintenant!
Now I will write.  Maintenant, je vais écrire.
Now we are ready to begin [a task]. Nous sommes prêts à commencer. Nous sommes prêtes à 

commencer. [If only women]

-O-
Of course!  Bien entendu  [or] bien sure 
OK D’accord
One moment!  Un moment!

-P-
Pardon me for interrupting.  Pardonnez moi de vous interrompre.  
Perhaps Peut-etrê
Please   S’il vous plait.
Politics is a question of opinions.  La politique est une question d’opinions.

-R-
Religion is a matter of feeling.  La religion est une affaire de sentiment.
Restrain thyself!  Calmez-vous. Retenez-vous. Ne vous emballez pas.

-S-
See you at [time of day] On se voir à [heure]
Shall we go? Vous êtes prêt ? [prête if " vous " is a woman.] [If formal, or you say it to several 

people/friends.]  Tu es prêt ? [prête if " tu " is a woman.] [Informal, and to only one friend.]
Shit  Merde
Sideways De profil
Sit down.  Asseyez vous.
Sit here. Asseyez-vous ici. [If person is familiar:] Assieds-toi ici.
Sit there. Asseyez-vous là. [If person is familiar:] Assieds-toi là.
Some of you have made known to me your desire to go on vacation via an exchange of apartments  

Certains d'entre vous m'ont fait part de leur envie de partir en vacances avec le système 
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d'échange d'appartement.
Speak more slowly.  Parle piu lentement.
Speak to me.  Parlez moi.
Stay there.  Restez là. [If person is familiar:] Reste-là.
Stop it!  Arrête!  Stop!

-T-
Take an aspirin.  Prends une aspirine.
Take it.  Prenez-le [or ...la].  
Take your time.  Donnez-vous le temps.
Terrible! [said, e.g., of a news event]  C'est lamentable ! / C'est triste!
Thank you   Merci.
Thank you for having instructed me how one writes his emails before sending them.  Merci
      d’avoir m’instruit comment on ecrit ses e-mails avant de les envoyer.
That's all for now. C'est tout jusqu'a demain.
That’s nice.  C’est bon.
That is correct. C'est correct.
That is my advice, but I could be wrong. C'est mon avis, mais je pourrais avoir tort.
The day after tomorrow.  Lendemain.
There it is!  C’est la! [or] Ça y est!
There’s a place! Il y a une place!
This is broken. C'est cassé.
This is my car. Voici ma voiture.
This is my list of French words, phrases, sentences, and questions. Ceci est ma liste de mots, 

d'expressions, de phrases et de question en français.
A thousand kisses  Mille bisous [More intimate:] Mille baisers
Thousand times, a   mille fois
Today.  Aujourd’hui.
To get to the back yard, go out the front door, turn right, then right again, go down the driveway, 

and open the gate.  Pour arriver au jardin, sortez de la porte a la facade, allez a droit, encore 
une fois a droit, et apres cela, descendez l'entree pour voitures et ouvrez la porte.

Tomorrow.  Demain.
Too bad.  Tant pis.
To the left  A gauche
To the right  A droit
Turn on the heat, if you like.  But be sure to turn it off before you go to sleep.  S'il te plait, mets le 

chauffage si tu as froid. Mais n'oublie pas de l'arretter avant de dormir.
Type! [command] Tapez!

-U-
Use the bathroom upstairs instead of the one downstairs.  S'il te plait, utilise la toilette en haut, au 

lieu de cellui en bas.

-V-
Very important!  Tres importante!
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-W-
Wait a minute!  Attends!  [or] Une seconde!
Watch out!   Attention!
Watch out for ...   Attention au…
We are going for a walk. Nous allons nous promener.
We are late.  Nous somme en retard.
Welcome to my house.  Bienvenue chez moi.
We must hurry! Nous devons nous dépêcher!
We must leave no later than ...  Nous devons partir avant ...
Were you warm enough?  Est-ce que vous etiez assez chaud?
What a beautiful day! Quelle belle journée ! Quelle journée magnifique !
What a beautiful email! Quel bel e-mail ! Quel e-mail magnifique !
What a beautiful letter!  Quelle lettre magnifique! [or] Quelle belle lettre!
What am I doing? Mais qu'est-ce que je fais ?
What am I trying to do here? [i.e., in this endeavor] Mais qu'est-ce que je suis en train de faire là ?
What are we trying to do here? [i.e., in this endeavor] Mais qu'est-ce que nous sommes en train de 

faire là ?
What are you doing? Que faites-vous ? [If person is familiar - Que fais-tu ?]
What are you going to do today? Qu'allez-vous faire aujourd'hui? [If person is familiar:] Que vas-

tu faire aujourd'hui?
What are you reading?  Qu’est-ce que vous lisez?
What are your hours? [said to a store clerk, meaning, when are you open?]  Quels sont vos horai-

res d’ouverture?
What a surprise! Quelle surprise !
What beautiful weather! Quel temps magnifique!
What college?  Quel universite?  [or] Quel college?
What did you do?  Qu'est ce que vous avez faites? [or] Qu'est-ce que tu avait fait?
What did you study?  Quel est votre specialite?
What does [phrase] mean? Qu'est-ce que [phrase] veut dire ?
What does this phrase mean? Que veut dire cette expression ? Que signifie cette expression ?
What does this sentence mean? Que veut dire cette phrase ? Que signifie cette phrase ?
What does [sentence] mean? Qu'est-ce que [sentence] veut dire ?
What does this word mean? Que veut dire ce mot ? Que signifie ce mot ?
What does [word] mean? Qu'est-ce que [word] veut dire ?
What does this mean?  Qu'est-ce que ça veut dire ?
What do we want here? Que voulons-nous ici ? [Quel mot doit-on placer ici ?]
What do you plan to do?  Qu'est-ce que sont vos intentions comme travail?
What do you think of ...[i.e., what is your opinion of ...]?  Que pensez-vous de… ? / Quelle est 

votre avis sur… ? [If formal, or you say it to several people/friends.] Que penses-tu de… ? / 
Quelle est ton avis sur… ? [Informal, and to only one friend.]

What is a good place to buy a toaster? Où peut-on acheter un bon grille-pain? [Familiar:] C’est où 
qu’on peut acheter un grille-pain?

What is the date today? Quelle est la date d'aujourd'hui?
What is the French word for ... ?  Comment on dit...?
What is the name [or title] of it? Quel est son nom [ou titre]?
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What is this?   Qu’est-ce que c’est?
What is your home [phone] number? Quel est votre numéro de téléphone?
What is your name?   Comment vous appelez-vous ? [If formal, or you say it to several people/

friends.]  Comment t'appelles-tu ? [Informal, and to only one friend.]
What is your work [phone] number? Quel est votre numéro au travail?
What kind of work do you do? Quel genre de travail faîtes-vous?
What should I write?  Que devrais-je écrire?
What time is it?  Quel heure est’il?
What type of word is ... ? [e.g., noun, verb]  Quel type de mot est-ce ...?
What was the name of it?  Comment ça s'appelait?
What would you like to do today? Qu'aimeriez-vous faire aujourd'hui ? [If person is familiar - 

Qu'aimerais-tu faire aujourd'hui ?]
What you must keep in mind is ...  Il ne faut pas que vous oubliez que... [or, if person is familiar to 

you] Il ne faut pas que tu oublies que...
When are you leaving? Quand partez-vous?
When are you leaving for ... ? Quand partez-vous à… ? [If formal, or you say it to several people/

friends.] Quand pars-tu à… ? [Informal, and to only one friend.]
When did you get back? Quand êtes-vous revenu?
When did you leave? Quand êtes-vous parti? [If person is a woman:] Quand êtes-vous partie? [If 

person is familiar:] Quand es-tu parti/e?
When shall we meet? Quand pouvons-nous nous rencontrer? [Also:] Quand pouvons-nous nous 

revoir?
When should we leave?  A quelle heure partirons-nous? [Or] Quand devrions-nous partir?
When will the next issue of [name of magazine] be in?  Quand est-ce que le pochain numéro de 

[magazine] sortira?
When will you be back? Quand est-ce que vous serez de retour? or Vous rentrez quand? (T) 

Quand est-ce que tu seras de retour? Tu rentres quand?
When will you be here?  Quand serez-vous ici ? / Quand arriverez-vous ici ? [If formal, or you say 

it to several people/friends.]  Quand seras-tu ici ? / Quand arriveras-tu ici ? [Informal, and to 
only one friend.]

When will you be ready?  Quand serez-vous prêt? [If person is a woman:] Quand serez-vous 
prête?  [If person is familiar:] Quand seras-tu prêt/e?

When will you return? Quand reviendrez-vous? [If person is familiar:] Quand reviendras-tu?
Where are we going?  Où allons-nous?
Where are you from?  D’où êtes-vous? [if person is familiar to you:] D’où viens-tu?
Where are you going?  Où allez-vous [or Où vas-tu?]
Where can I buy...?  Où peut-on acheter...?
Where can I buy a French newspaper? Où peut on acheter un journal Francais?
Where can I buy a newspaper? Où peut-on acheter un journal?
Where did you find it? Où l'avez-vous trouvé? [If person is familiar:] Où l'as-tu trouvé? [and if 

object is feminine:] Où l'avez-vous/l'as-tu trouvée?
Where did you go? Où êtes-vous allez? [or] Où es-tu allez?
Where do you live? Où demeurez-vous? [or ] Où habitez-vous? [The second is prevalent.]
Where have you been? Où es-tu allé ? [Informal man] Où es-tu allée ? [Informal woman] Où êtes-

vous allé(s) ? [Formal man / + "s" if several]] Où tes-vous allée(s) ? [Formal woman / + "s" if 
several]
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Where is ...?  Où est ... ?
Where is a copy center? [i.e., a place that I can have copies of papers made] Où puis-je faire des 

photocopies?
Where is a drug store?  Où  est la pharmacie? [or] Où  y-a-til une pharmacie?
Where is a grocery store? Où est l’épicerie? [or] Où y-a-t-il une épicerie?
Where is a hotel?  Où est un hotel?
Where is a restaurant?  Où est un restaurant?
Where is my pencil/pen? Où est mon stylo ?
Where is someone who can speak English? Y a-t-il quelqu'un qui parle anglais?
Where is the airport? Où est l'aeroport?
Where is the American embassy?  Où est 'ambassade des etats-unis? [perhaps, if none in town: 

l'attache culturel]
Where is the bus? Où puis-je trouver l'arret de l'autobus?
Where is the Post Office? Où est la poste?
Where is the restroom?  Où est le W.C. [pronounced, vay say]
Where is the subway? Où est le metro?
Where is the supermarket?  Où est le supermarché?
Where shall we meet? Où rencontrons-nous? [or pouvons-nous nous rentrer?]
When should we leave? Quand devrions-nous partir ?
Where was I?[in my thinking.  E.g., as in, “Now let's see, where was I?”] Où en étais-je ?
Where were we? [in our thinking, in our attempt to solve a problem or do something] Où en 

étions-nous ?
Which way is it?  Dans quelle direction est ...?
Who cares?  Et alors? [or] Je m’en fiche [or] Je m’en fous.
Who is it? [e.g., when responding to a knock on the door] Qui est la?
Why?  Pourquoi?
Wonderful!   Tres bien!
Work [phone] number.  Numero de telephone au bureau
Would you like some coffee or tea?   Aimez vous du the ou du caffee?
Would you like something to drink?  Voulez vous quelquechose a boire?
Would you like some wine?  Voulez vous du vin?
Would you like to sit in the back yard? Voulez-vous asseoir dans le jardin ? / Ca vous dirait de 

vous asseoir dans le jardin ? [If formal, or you say it to several people/friends.] Veux-tu 
t'asseoir dans le jardin ?. / Est-ce que ça te dirait de t'asseoir dans le jardin ? [Informal, and to 
only one friend.]

Would you translate some English words and phrases into French for me? Est-ce que vous seriez-
prêt à traduire des mots et des phrases de l'anglais vers le francais pour moi ? [If person is 
familiar - Est-ce que tu serais prêt à traduire des phrases de l'anglais vers le francais pour moi 
?] [If person is a woman/not familiar - Est-ce que vous seriez prête à traduire des phrases de 
l'anglais vers le francais pour moi ? [If person is a woman/familiar - Est-ce que tu serais prête 
à traduire des phrases de l'anglais vers le francais pour moi ?]

Write what you want to say.  S'il vous plait, ecrivez ce que vous voulez dire.

-Y-
Yes  Oui
Yesterday.  Hier.
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You are forgetting that ...  Vous oubliez que... [If person is familiar to you:] Tu oublies que...
You are looking great! Vous avez/(Tu as) l'air en forme.
You are looking very sexy! Vous êtes/(Tu es) très sexy!
You are right.  Vous avez raison.  
You are smart.  Vous êtes intelligent.
You are very intelligent.  Vous êtes tres intelligent.
You are very neat.  Vous êtes bien soigne.
You are welcome to join us.  Please have a seat.  But feel free to leave whenever you wish.  Restez 

avec nous, s'il vous plait.  Asseyez vous, s’il vous plait.  Mais, si vous preferez de nous quit-
tez, c'est bien aussi.

You are welcome to read my books but I must ask you not to remove any books from the house -- 
ever.  Not even for an hour or two.  Many of these books are irreplaceable.  Vous pouvez lire 
mes livres, mais il faut vous laissez savoir que ces livres doivent rester ici, tout le temps.  Je ne 
veux qu'on les enlevement de la maison, meme pour une heure ou deux.  On ne peut pas 
replacer beaucoup de mes livres. 

You are wrong.  Vous avez tort. [If formal, or you say it to several people/friends.] Tu as tort. 
[Informal, and to only one friend.]

You have a beautiful home.  Vous avez une belle maison.
You have no idea how to do a “quick hello”. Tu n'as aucune idee comment on fait un "Quick 

hello."
You look nice. Vous avez l'air superbe.
You may sit in the back yard whenever you like.  Amusez-vous bien au jardin quand il vous plait.
You must see ... ! [film] Vous devez absolument voir ...! [If person is familiar: ] Tu dois absolu-

ment voir ...!
You shouldn’t have done that.  Vous n’auriez pas dû faire cela.
You weren’t here last [day of week] [said to clerk in a store]  Vous n’etiez pas ici [lundi, mardi ...] 

dernier
You will be alone this week.  Will you be able to get around all right?  Tu seras seule cette
       semaine. Pourras-tu trouver du transport? (or) Pourras-tu trouver tout dont tu auras besoin?
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